
Mayor 
Clay Koplin 
 

Council Members 
James Burton 
Kenneth Jones 
Jeff Guard 
Robert Beedle 
Josh Hallquist 
David Allison 
James Wiese 
 

City Manager 
Alan Lanning 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
 

Student Council 
Corinne Pegau 

1910 Postcard of Cordova 

 
Regular City Council Meeting  

June 7, 2017 @ 7:00 pm  
Cordova Center Community Rooms  

Agenda  
 

A. Call to order   
 

 B. Invocation and pledge of allegiance 
 

I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United 
States of America, and to the republic for which 
it stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with 
liberty and justice for all.  
 

C. Roll call 
 

Mayor Clay Koplin, Council members James Burton, 
Kenneth Jones, Jeff Guard, Robert Beedle, Josh Hallquist, 
David Allison and James Wiese 
 

D. Approval of Regular Agenda……..……..….............................................................................................. (voice vote) 
 

E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest 
 

F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
 

1. Guest Speakers 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items……………………………………………………………. (3 minutes per speaker) 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions (Harbor, CCMCABoD, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board) 
4. Student Council Representative Report 
  

G. Approval of Consent Calendar………………………………….………….……………………………………..……… (roll call vote) 
 

5. Resolution 06-17-18…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……… (page 1) 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a sole source contract with Construction Machinery Industrial, LLC, for the purpose 
of purchasing an emergency shelter backup portable generator for the City of Cordova 

6. Resolution 06-17-19………………………………………………………………………………………………………..……..…… (page 4) 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, requesting FY 18 payment in lieu 
of taxes funding from the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development  

7. Proclamation of Appreciation to Bill Gilbert………………..………………………………………..……………………… (page 7) 
8. Record excused absence of Council members Burton from the May 17, 2017 Regular Meeting 
 

H. Approval of Minutes……………………………………………..………………………………………………….…..……… (voice vote) 
 

9. Minutes of 05-17-17 Council Public Hearing………………………….…………….…….…….……...….…..……..….… (page 8) 
10. Minutes of 05-17-17 Council Regular Meeting………………………….…………….……….……....………….….…… (page 9) 
 

I. Consideration of Bids 
 

J. Reports of Officers  
 

11. Mayor’s Report………………………………………………………………………………………………………..……….……. (page 12) 
12. Manager’s Report  
13. City Clerk’s Report  
 

 



Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 
adverse effect upon the finances of the government; (2) Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; 
provided that the person may request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be 

confidential; (4) Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure. 
If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 

Full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net 

K. Correspondence 
  

14. 05-19-17 Letter from Governor’s Deputy Chief of Staff re infrastructure projects…….……………....……. (page 13) 

15. 05-22-17 Email from S. Renner re Nirvana Cemetery Park/Spit…………………….………….................……. (page 15) 

16. 05-22-17 Email from R. Madison re Nirvana Park…………………………………………….…………………..……. (page 17) 

17. 05-22-17 Email from B. Shipman re Nirvana Park…………………………………………….……………….....……. (page 19) 

18. 05-23-17 Letter from A. Butler re Nirvana Park……………………………………………………….…………...……. (page 20) 

19. 05-31-17 Letter from B. Chapek re Kopchak variance…………………………………………….………….....……. (page 21) 

20. 05-31-17 Letter/petition from D. Riedel etal re Nirvana Park/spit……………………………….………….….…. (page 23) 

21. 06-02-17 Letter from Mayor Koplin to Governor and Commissioner Cotten………….…………........……. (page 41) 

22. Article on Cordova from Alaska Magazine April 2017……………………………….…………....................……. (page 44) 

 

L. Ordinances and Resolutions 
 

23. Resolution 06-17-17…………………………………….……………..….………………............................ (voice vote)(page 47) 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, setting the mill rate for 
the 2017 tax year 

 

M. Unfinished Business 
 

24. Award of land disposal Lot 8 & 9 Block 1 Odiak Park Subdivision…………………………….… (voice vote)(page 50) 
25. Nirvana Park/Eyak Lake spit update…………………………………………………………………………………………. (page 86) 
 

N. New & Miscellaneous Business 
 

26. Pending Agenda, Calendar and Elected & Appointed Officials lists…..……………………………...……........ (page 89) 
 

O. Audience Participation   
 

P. Council Comments 
 

Q. Adjournment 
 
  



 

 

May 23, 2017 

 
Mayor Clay Koplin 
City Council 
City Manager Alan Lanning. 
 
 
This memo is to advise City Council that the State of Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management granted an award of $36,000.00 to the City of Cordova for purchasing an additional emergency 
back-up generator for our community.  This generator will power a designated emergency shelter in the event a 
disaster displaces local community members, the hospital residents, and staff.   
 
This office is requesting City Council under Cordova Municipal Code in Section 5.12.040 - Council approval of 
contracts. No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than twenty-five 
thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth the following 
essential terms of the contract; Section 5.12.150 (a)(5) - providing for sole source procurements for professional 
services, to move forward with Construction Machinery Industrial, LLC, (CMI) as the Sole Source Vendor for this 
grant. 
 
The City of Cordova utilized CMI in 2015 after a Request for Proposal (RFP) claimed CMI as the lowest bidder 
at the direction of the State of Alaska. This Grant was used to purchase a Doosan G25 Back-up Generator for 
the Water Treatment Facilities in the event of a disaster.   
 
Purchasing an identical generator through CMI under this year’s SHSP Grant will save valuable staff time in 
research and development in the event of an emergency.  It will also reduce city funds in training costs and 
preventive maintenance costs, which will also allow ease of city wide utilization and redundancy requiring no 
additional vendors and or supplies for future connectivity.      
 
 
  
 
 
Sincerely. 
 
 
 
Paul Trumblee 
City Fire Marshal 

                                   Cordova Volunteer Fire Department  
                                   FIRE CHIEF MICHAEL HICKS 

 

P.O. Box 304 
Cordova, Alaska 99574 
(907) 424-6117 or (907) 424-6100 
Fax (907) 424-3473 
email: fire@cityofcordova.net 

1



 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 06-17-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT 

WITH CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY INDUSTRIAL, LLC, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
PURCHASING AN EMERGENCY SHELTER BACKUP PORTABLE GENERATOR FOR 

THE CITY OF CORDOVA 
 

WHEREAS,  the Alaska Department of Homeland Security, under the 2016 State Homeland 
Security Grant Program (SHSP), awarded the City of Cordova a Grant of $36,000 to purchase an 
Emergency Portable Generator on a towable Trailer; and 

 
            WHEREAS, CMI is a State recognized vendor of Commercial Grade Generators and has 
extensive experience working with state and local officials; and  
  

WHEREAS, the City of Cordova has used CMI on a previous SHSP Grant as the successful 
lowest bidder to purchase an emergency towable generator within its jurisdiction; and 

  
WHEREAS, the Doosan G25 self-contained portable generator is fully compatible and 

functionally seamless with the additional Cordova Emergency Backup Generator, and recognized City 
Emergency Shelters; and  

 
            WHEREAS, no additional equipment or training will be needed to be purchased or installed by 
additional companies or vendors to be necessary for full compatibility within our organization saving 
our community future funds; and  

 
            WHEREAS, this request meets the provisions of the Cordova Municipal Code in Section 
5.12.040 - Council approval of contracts. No contract for supplies, services or construction which 
obligates the city to pay more than twenty-five thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has 
approved a memorandum setting forth the following essential terms of the contract: and Section 5.12.150 
(a)(5) - providing for sole source procurements for professional services.  
 
 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to enter a contract with Construction Machinery Industrial, LLC to 
purchase a Doosan G25 20kw portable trailer mounted self-contained unit and associated equipment and 
materials for the City of Cordova in an amount not to exceed $25,000. 
  

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7th DAY OF JUNE, 2017. 
      
 
        ______________________________
        Clay R. Koplin, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
        ______________________________
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

2



5.12.040 Council approval of contracts. 

No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more 
than twenty-five thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a 
memorandum setting forth the following essential terms of the contract:  

A.  The identity of the contractor; 
B.  The contract price; 
C.  The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the 
contract; and  
D.  The time for performance under the contract. 

(Ord. 1019 § 1, 2008: Ord. 874, 2000: Ord. 809 (part), 1998).  

(Ord. No. 1093, § 1, 1-4-2012)  

5.12.150 Sole source procurements. 

A.  The city may procure supplies, services or construction without competition where the city 
manager determines in writing that one of the following circumstances applies:  

1.  Supplies, services or construction that reasonably meet the city's requirements are 
available from only one vendor;  
2.  The supplies, services or construction have a uniform price wherever purchased; 
3.  The supplies, services or construction may be purchased from or through another 
governmental unit at a price lower than that obtainable from private vendors;  
4.  The price of the supplies, services or construction is fixed by a regulatory authority; 
or  
5.  The contract is for professional services that the council by resolution determines 
to procure without formal competition.  

B.  The award of any contract under this section shall be subject to prior council approval in 
accordance with Section 5.12.040  

(Ord. 809 (part), 1998). 

 

3

http://library.municode.com/HTML/16292/level2/TIT5REFI_CH5.12PU.html%23TIT5REFI_CH5.12PU_5.12.040COAPCO


4



5



 

 
FY 18 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 

FUNDING RESOLUTION 
 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 06-17-19 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

REQUESTING FY 18 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES FUNDING FROM THE 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

 
 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 152.100 requires the governing body of a city to adopt a resolution 

requesting funding from the Payment in Lieu of Taxes Program for cities in the unorganized 
borough and to submit the resolution to the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 
Development; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has conducted a regular election during the preceding state fiscal 
year and has reported the results of the election to the commissioner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, regular meetings of the governing body are held in the city and a record of 
the proceedings is maintained; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ordinances adopted by the city have been codified in accordance with AS 
29.25.050. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, by this resolution hereby requests distribution from the FY 18 Payment in Lieu 
of Taxes Program by the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development on 
the date required by law.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the City Council 
this 7th day of June, 2017. 

 
              
       ______________________________ 
       Clay R. Koplin, Mayor 
 
      Attest: 
       ______________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

6



 

I, Mayor Clay R. Koplin, do hereby issue this Proclamation of Appreciation to  
William “Bill” Gilbert, Trident South Plant Manager, for his years of invaluable contributions 
to Cordova, its fisheries, fishermen, plant employees and families, upon his retirement from 

Trident Seafoods and the Alaska Seafood Industry. 
 

 WHEREAS, Bill arrived in Cordova to manage the Norquest/Silver Lining Seafoods plant in 
1992; and 

 

 WHEREAS, throughout his time as plant manager, he worked tirelessly to bring the highest 
quality Copper River and Prince William Sound salmon, halibut, and sablefish to markets around the 
world; and 

 

 WHEREAS, over his tenure, longline boats from across Alaska came out of their way to make 
deliveries in Cordova out of respect and admiration for Bill; and 

 

 WHEREAS, such deliveries contributed significantly to the economy of the community of 
Cordova and allowed Bill the opportunity to perfect his smoked black cod recipe which has been 
enjoyed by countless visitors to Trident’s South Plant; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Bill generously volunteered many personal hours, resources and guidance in 
aiding many organizations, causes, and fellow waterfront businesses; and 

 

 WHEREAS, he always strove for the betterment of the livelihoods of generations of fishermen, 
tendermen, and resource managers working in Cordova; and 

	

 WHEREAS, Bill’s passion for the science, management and sustainability of Alaska’s 
fishery resources is a cornerstone of his life philosophy. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the Mayor, the City Council, and the 
citizens of Cordova hereby express their sincerest appreciation to Bill Gilbert for his long-time 
devotion as a resident, seafood professional and personal champion and supporter of the economy, 
resources and residents of the City of Cordova, Alaska. 
 

                   Signed this 7th day of June, 2017 
 

              ___________________________________ 
                    Clay R. Koplin, Mayor         

7



 

Minutes, Public Hearing 
May 17, 2017 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Public Hearing 
May 17, 2017 @ 6:45 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Minutes 

 
A.  Call to order 
 

Mayor Clay Koplin called the Council public hearing to order at 6:50 pm on May 17, 2017, in the Cordova Center 
Community Rooms. 
 

B.  Roll call 
 

Present for roll call were Mayor Clay Koplin and Council members Ken Jones, Jeff Guard, David Allison and 
James Wiese. Council members James Burton, Robert Beedle and Josh Hallquist were absent. Also present were 
City Manager Alan Lanning and Deputy City Clerk Tina Hammer.  
 

C.  Public hearing 
 

1. Ordinance 1154 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the transfer of 
$240,500 from the general reserve fund for the purpose of bringing current, PERS obligations for CCMC – 2nd 
reading 
 

Mayor Koplin opened the hearing up for public testimony on Ordinance 1154. 
 

Scot Mitchell of 5 Alpine Falls Drive and CEO of the hospital encouraged Council passage of the ordinance – he 
is also available to answer any questions.  
 

Jeff Guard asked if they would be able to stay current after this payment. Mitchell replied that with all they have 
going on, he does not believe they will be able to remain current in this PERS obligation as it is $30 - $40 thousand 
for each payroll.  
 

D.  Adjournment 
 

With no objection, Mayor Koplin adjourned the hearing at 6:58 pm 
 
Approved:  June 7, 2017 

  
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

8



 

Reg Mtg Min 
May 17, 2017 
Page 1 of 3 

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 17, 2017 @ 7:00 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Minutes 

 

A. Call to order  
Mayor Clay Koplin called the Council regular meeting to order at 7:04 pm on May 17, 2017, in the Cordova Center 
Community Rooms. 
 

B. Invocation and pledge of allegiance 
Mayor Koplin led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Roll call 
Present for roll call were Mayor Clay Koplin and Council members Ken Jones, Jeff Guard, Robert Beedle, David Allison 
and James Wiese. Council member Josh Hallquist arrived via teleconference at 7:29 pm. Council member James Burton 
was absent. Also present were City Manager Alan Lanning and Deputy City Clerk Tina Hammer.  
 

D. Approval of Regular Agenda  
M/Allison S/Jones to approve the Regular Agenda.  
Vote on the motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Burton, Hallquist). Motion was approved. 
 

E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest - none 
 

F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
1. Guest Speakers - none  
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items 
Dave Roemhildt of Mile 6 CRH, spoke to the pending agenda and requested that Council add a special meeting, a real 
quick one, to approve the Ocean Beauty site plan that was approved at P & Z last night. They are in a time crunch to try 
to get this housing project up prior to seine season.  
Katrina Hoffman of 301 South Second Street, spoke in support of the request being made in correspondence, item 17 of 
the agenda.  
Scot Mitchell of 5 Alpine Falls Drive spoke in favor of Council passage of Ordinance 1154, agenda item 18.  
Stephanie Rusinski of 930 Lake Avenue, spoke in favor of her request in correspondence item 17, for the City to put 
power to the lot where her business is located.  
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions   
Harbor Commission – Beedle said the commission met last Wednesday, they discussed tideland moorage (rates, etc. for 
vessels that don’t fit in the harbor), there has been a dumpster and an outhouse put down at the shipyard, they discussed 
the oil centrifuge – waste oil (the Harbor needs a shop anyway) – he’d like to see this on the pending agenda or some 
direction for the City Manager to start working with the Harbormaster to get this project started 
CCMCABoD – Scot Mitchell reported that the Board will have regular meetings now on the 4th Thursday of the month; 
he mentioned that since the first of the year usage is up at the hospital in all departments; the 340B pharmacy project has 
been approved at the federal level – they have begun the recruitment of a pharmacist; rates will be looked at and 
adjustments made as it appears we are low compared to Alaska on a lot of charges; also, they will propose changes to the 
billing company that’s being used currently. 
P&R, P&Z, School Board – no reports 
4. Student Council Representative Report – Cori Pegau was not present. 
 

G. Approval of Consent Calendar 
Mayor Koplin declared the consent calendar was before the City Council.  
5. Resolution 05-17-15 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a three (3) year lease with Carl and Jane Jensen for Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite which includes an 
option to purchase  
6. Record excused absences of Council members Burton and Beedle from the May 3, 2017 Regular Meeting 
Vote on the consent calendar: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent. Wiese-yes; Jones-yes; Beedle-yes; Hallquist-absent; Allison-yes; 
Burton-absent and Guard-yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 

H. Approval of Minutes 
M/Allison S/Wiese to approve the minutes.  
7. Minutes of 05-03-17 Council Public Hearing 

9



 

Reg Mtg Min 
May 17, 2017 
Page 2 of 3 

8. Minutes of 05-03-17 Council Regular Meeting 

Vote on the motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Burton, Hallquist). Motion was approved. 
 

I. Consideration of Bids - none 
 

J. Reports of Officers  
9. Mayor’s Report – Mayor Koplin said he had a written report and nothing to add. Beedle had asked Mayor Koplin to 
comment on Council commenting in the public. Mayor Koplin said that as far as getting on social media, best practice for 
the Council should probably be to contact the City Manager to discuss and/or to put it on a future agenda as that is the 
appropriate venue for it to be discussed. 
10. Manager’s Report – Lanning said to clarify the waste oil centrifuge and project – he said it is a Harbor project, they’ll 
be taking it over – that’s the direction that has been given; as far as Stephanie’s business on the breakwater fill lot, he needs 
direction from council as to whether or not they want power put on that lot – then he’ll come back with a proposal, he’d 
request a Council motion (Beedle and Wiese said yes). After some discussion, Lanning said he would spend a little time 
on this, there is a permanent and a temporary answer – he’ll write it up and present council the options. Lanning said 
head nods are sufficient for him at this time to get working. 
11. City Clerk’s Report – Hammer said she has been working on the 2015 expiration of the redemption period as that is 
coming to a close. 
 

K. Correspondence  
12. 04-27-17 Letter from Senator Murkowski re Sea Grant Program funding 
13. 05-01-17 AKDoT&PF Southcoast Region Director’s Quarterly newsletter 
14. 05-02-17 Letter from Bruce & Sally Campbell re Lots 8 & 9, Odiak Park Subdivision 
15. 05-05-17 Letter from Mayor Koplin to Governor & ADF&G Commissioner re Copper River Fishery and SHTF 
16. 05-06-17 Letter from Mayor Koplin to Senator King re field meeting in Cordova June 10 
17. 05-10-17 Letter from S Rusinski Bernard re power to breakwater fill lot 
Beedle said he wanted to thank the Mayor for the letters being sent to the Governor and Commissioner – and for his 
time. Mayor Koplin wanted to remind Council that SHTF would be meeting Saturday from 9 – 11 am in this room. 
Council member Hallquist called in to the meeting at this time. 
 

L. Ordinances and Resolutions 
18. Ordinance 1154 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the transfer of $240,500 
from the general reserve fund for the purpose of bringing current, PERS obligations for CCMC – 2nd reading 
M/Allison S/Beedle to adopt Ordinance 1154 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing 
the transfer of $240,500 from the general reserve fund for the purpose of bringing current, PERS obligations for CCMC 
Beedle said he will not vote against this but he believes that first reading also required 7 yes votes. Allison said that the 
Code language is clear that only on final approval are the 7 votes required which means second reading.  
Vote on the motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Burton), 1 yea vote by Mayor Koplin. Allison-yes; Hallquist-yes; Guard-yes; 
Beedle-yes; Wiese-yes; Burton-absent and Jones-yes, therefore, Mayor Koplin-yes. Motion was approved 7 - 0. 
 

M. Unfinished Business 
 

N. New & Miscellaneous Business 
19. Council right to protest or waive protest to liquor license renewals license #s 61 & 62 Anchor Bar and Grill and Anchor 
Liquor Store 
Hammer had a handout – Mayor Koplin read it into the record for Council members on the phone. It was a memo from 
Finance Director Stavig that said he had no reason to recommend Council protest these liquor license renewals.  
M/Allison S/Wiese to waive Council’s right to protest renewals for liquor licenses #61 & #62. 
Vote on the motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Burton). Motion was approved. 
20. Pending Agenda, Calendar and Elected & Appointed Officials lists 
Special meeting was set for May 23 at 6 pm. Beedle suggested revisiting a council member being on each 
board/commission so the information flow comes back. Hallquist said he would like a Nirvana Park item on the next 
agenda. Jones asked about the possibility of opening up the parking in front of fishermen’s memorial. Lanning said he’ll 
look into that. 
 

O. Audience Participation 
Stephanie Rusinski of 930 Lake Avenue thanked Council for their support. 
 

P. Council Comments 

10



 

Reg Mtg Min 
May 17, 2017 
Page 3 of 3 

Jones thanked everyone for coming out. 
Wiese thanked Scot (Mitchell) and Lee (Holter) for coming to meetings to let them know what’s going on there. Thanked 
Mayor Koplin for all of the letters and extra time he puts in. He said best of luck to Stephanie.  
Beedle praised the Streets crew for the work around his neighborhood.  
Allison safe and good fishing to all those heading out tomorrow. 
 

Q. Adjournment 
M/Allison S/Jones to adjourn the meeting. 
Hearing no objection the meeting was adjourned at 7:49 pm. 
 
Approved: June 7, 2017    
 
  
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

11



 

Mayor’s Report 
6‐2‐17 
Clay Koplin 
 
Last week Cordova Electric Cooperative and Alaska Village Electric Cooperative hosted the Canadian Off 
Grid  Utility  Association  biennial  Prime  Power  Diesel  Inter‐Utility  Conference  in  Cordova.  The  75 
participants from Alaska, Canada, and Greenland and vendors from across the US and Canada thoroughly 
enjoyed the hospitality and quality of their experience  in Cordova.   Special thanks to the staffs of The 
Reluctant  Fisherman,  Orca  Adventure  Lodge,  The  City  of  Cordova,  and  the  countless  businesses, 
accommodations, restaurants, and individuals that contributed to such a great conference.  
 
I have worked with manager Lanning to prepare the agenda and capital priorities for the work session 
before this meeting. 
 
I wrote a letter to the Governor and Commissioner Cotten thanking them for engaging Area E and Prince 
William Sound fisheries stakeholders by hosting a Salmon Harvest Task Force meeting in Cordova on May 
20th.  I  also  communicated  our  frustration  with  the  measurement,  management,  and  allocation 
inconsistencies embedded in current policy and management practices and the negative economic and 
subsistence impacts on our community and region.   
 
We are excited to be hosting U.S. Senators Murkowski, Cantwell, and colleagues for a Senate Energy and 
Natural Resources Committee field hearing in Cordova June 10th at the Cordova Center to showcase both 
our successes and needs as the new administration considers  infrastructure  investments and program 
funding.   
 
Have a safe, enjoyable summer. 
 
Mayor Clay 
 
 
 
 

12



BILL WALKER  P.O. Box 110001 

 Governor  Juneau, AK  99811-0001 
  (907) 465-3500 
  Fax (907) 465-3532 
 

STATE OF ALASKA 
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR 

JUNEAU 
 

 

May 19, 2017 
 
 
The Honorable Clay Koplin 
Mayor 
City of Cordova 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, AK 99574 
 
 
Dear Mayor Koplin, 
 
President Trump has made investment in national infrastructure a priority for his new 
Administration. As a result jurisdictions all around the country have been assembling their wish lists 
of projects for possible consideration. Governor Walker recently sent an initial list of Alaskan 
infrastructure projects for consideration by the Trump Administration. However, the Governor also 
provided notice that additional projects may be nominated by the State for qualifying municipal 
projects. 
 
The State is therefore soliciting proposals for municipal or tribal infrastructure projects that might 
qualify for consideration under this federal program. If interested in offering projects for 
consideration, please follow the criteria below: 
 

 Limit submissions to a maximum of three projects for communities of less than 10,000; or 
five projects for communities over 10,000 in population. 

 Rank order all projects, highest to lowest. 

 Projects must have a significant local match or private sector component to the overall 
funding package – provide project budget proposal.  

 Preference should be given to projects that are shovel-ready. 

 Identify if any project qualifies for other federal capital funding programs; these projects will 
likely receive lower priority in this solicitation. 

 Project nominations must include a narrative explaining how the project would contribute to 
one or more of the federal goals for this program, including: 

o Promote American jobs and economic growth 
o Improve the balance of international trade 
o Promote American energy security  
o Rebuild failing public critical infrastructure  
o Meet an immediate life/safety concern not readily addressable by other means 

 
 

13



The Honorable Clay Koplin 
May 19, 2017 
Page 2 
 
Please submit all project nominations by June 30, 2017 via the Office of Management and Budget 
web interface: https://www.omb.alaska.gov/html/omb-home/community-project-requests.html. 
 
Don’t hesitate to let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
John Hozey 
Deputy Chief of Staff 
Local Government Liaison 

14

https://www.omb.alaska.gov/html/omb-home/community-project-requests.html


1

Susan Bourgeois

----- Forwarded Message ----- 
From: Samantha Stevenson Renner 

Cc: CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net, CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net, 
CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net, CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net, 
CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net, CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net, 
CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net 
Sent: Mon, 22 May 2017 17:45:08 -0400 (EDT) 
Subject: Nirvana Cemetery Park/Spit 

To Whom It May Concern, 

I am writing in this e‐mail because I left the meeting about the spit last Thursday afternoon even more 
confused than I was when I went in. I attended this meeting to try to understand the process of how it was 
ultimately decided by the 
committee to shut the spit down to recreating, as I felt like that process was not transparent from simply 
reading the materials provided from each meeting and the letters and recommendations from each group 
involved. I also wanted to try to understand where 
each group from the core committee was coming from and ultimately hear what the justification was for 
shutting it down. Lastly, I was hoping to better understand what the grant money was actually supposed to be 
used for. 

I have been following this process for some time now but have not been attending meetings as they are during 
normal work hours, which does not work for people who have 8‐5 jobs other than those getting paid to attend 
the meetings. I have 
looked through all of the letters published by the city pertaining to this issue and have read all the 
recommendations by each party involved in the core committee. All of these letters seem to have a few things 
in common in their recommendations such as restricting 
motor vehicle access, improving the spit beach including doing work to the beach to help with erosion, 
keeping recreation opportunities open to the public and acknowledging the site as a graveyard with the 
appropriate markings and signage. What I do not see 
is any of the recommendations is to shut the place down to the public yet that is the decision the core 
committee ultimately made. How did we get from using the grant and improving the spit in various ways to 
“Swimming, 
live fires and other activities will not be permitted as the area will be treated like any of the other four 
cemeteries in Cordova?” 
To me this is where the transparency seems to disappear in the whole process. 

15



2

I attended the meeting regarding the spit on Thursday May 18th and as I mentioned before I left more confused 
than when I went in. I went into this meeting 
hoping to understand what I thought I missed in the letters and agendas, how the decision to shut down the 
spit to the public was made. First off, this meeting seemed to begin with a closed‐door meeting attended by 
the committee members that I believe is not 
permitted per the State of Alaska. As for the public part of the meeting, everyone was brought into a room, 
including committee members and asked to voice their opinion and although there were some differences in 
ideas, they all had the same theme, keep the 
spit open to the public. So again I ask, how was the choice made to close it down? In addition, if this is a 
recreational grant and they have deemed it a cemetery as announced on the city website wouldn’t the grant 
money need to be sent back? There seems to 
be a piece of the puzzle that is missing and the whole process is not making sense to me. 

I would also like to note that I felt that the portion of the meeting that the committee spent shaming 
individuals for talking on facebook was inappropriate. While 
there were definitely some comments that were unproductive, without this dialog the spit would soon be 
shutting down for recreational use despite the fact that according to everyone at the meeting we are on the 
same page to keep it open. It is my understanding 
that this committee is coming together to decide how to best use this money so when I see comments from 
committee members saying things like “if you can’t find somewhere else in this town to recreate than I feel 
sorry for you”, it makes it hard for me to believe 
that the committee’s real intention is to keep this place open to the public. Also I believe that the question of if 
the spit is closed down to public recreating (as was listed on the city’s website) why are special events such as 
wedding allowed is a valid 
question, so why couldn’t anyone just take the time to answer it?   

Ultimately, I would like to know what the missing piece of the puzzle is? If everyone is on the same page how 
did a decision in the complete different direction get 
made? Also if people do not continue to take time off work to attend these meetings are the plans going to 
switch directions again? To me it seems that the committee is not being completely transparent in their 
decision making as the info made public just 
does not seem to add up. In addition, I find it frustrating that when someone asked at the meeting if the spit 
was currently open or not the question was answered with a shoulder shrug. Who is making the decisions? 
Why does no one really seem to know what’s 
happening and what the plan is? Lastly I saw requests for recreational recommendations from the burial 
caucus from the City of Cordova but I never saw those recommendations. Did the caucus ever give any 
recommendations?  

Thank you for your time and I look forward to your response. 

 -Samantha Renner 
16



Via email 

May 22, 2017 

To the Members of City Council, 

I want to just say that this whole argument and controversy over the spit is childish and ignorant. The 

lack of knowledge and awareness about this issue is embarrassing. I do not understand how this became 

a race issue or an argument, everything was fine down there, the only issue was the motorized vehicles 

and the erosion problem and that should be the issue that gets address. I think the main problem is 

education. There is no place except for the museum for people to be educated on the history of Cordova 

and I think Nirvana Park would be a wonderful place to start. 

I think it is inconceivable to find out what bodies are Native or non‐Native (which there are both in the 

ground) but either way they should still be respected. They have been laying there peacefully for many 

years and to disturb them is corrupt so moving them should be out of the equation.  

I believe there should be no motorized vehicle access to the spit because that was an accident waiting to 

happen however foot traffic, swimming, weddings, ceremonies, and any other activities would not 

disrupt the area. As for the jet skis and planes (and may help with the erosion issue) set boulders up in 

the water with cork markers to protect the beach from waves.  

I think a toilet and trash receptacles be great to have in that area because many times I have gone down 

there with trash dispersed all over the area and I pick it up without anywhere to dispose of it, I have also 

seen piles of human waste in the park and that is disgusting. There should NOT be a trash or toilet 

within the park or on the spit, that is disrespectful and in my opinion gross. It would be convenient to 

have one off the premise near the parking area or at the top of the spit access. People can walk to use 

them. 

I also believe that whoever had the idea that the foot traffic and motor vehicles are the only reason 

there is erosion on the spit is senile. Yes, the trucks and cars probably did help however the flooding and 

storms are what have mainly impacted the spit and that is a fact. Before this whole problem became a 

problem, the city would dump gravel down there because of natural erosion and if they didn’t we would 

not have a spit today. Keep doing what you have been already doing, fill the beach in. Plus, nobody 

wants to see bones come out of the ground. Refill in the beach.  

Over the past two years I have been researching the history of Cordova. I think Nirvana park would be a 

great area to preserve and turn into a place where people can go to learn about the history both Native 

and non‐Native. Cordova has been the hub of the Gulf of Alaska for over ten thousand years and has 

become the melting pot of Native and non‐Native cultures. Eyak people were considered the middleman 

for all trades between the other Native groups as well as intermarrying with other tribes. This led to the 

Eyak being multi‐cultural people, we were influenced by the other tribes around us. That is what makes 

this area so special, we are a group of people who have come together to live cohesively even though 

we have diverse cultural and religious backgrounds. As I said in my letter, as a part of colonization, 

people came and swept over this land, pushing the Indigenous people from the 18th century until the 

mid‐to‐late‐20th century. Here is where cultural genocide took place. Being the 21st century, I do find it 

dire to preserve areas that are still sacred to the Indigenous people, the spit being a sacred place. This is 

piece of Cordova that can be used to promote cultural awareness and history where we and others can 

17



be influenced and informed by ALL cultures that resides here. Bringing in local artist to carve up totem 

poles, possibly having a memorial rock that honors the people that live here, having a nice pathway with 

casual benches where people can sit and respect, having signs (like the ones out at Alaganik) describing 

Cordova’s history, and cultural importance would be a beautiful addition. There is so much that could be 

done to revitalize this ground, and restricting access is not one of them.  

This issue has caused us to become segregated within our own community, we are becoming ugly, racist 

and malicious. Yes, Eyak people have been here and we should give my people that respect, BUT we but 

so have had major influences from the Alutiiq, Aleut, Athabascan, Tlingit, and other Native AND non‐

Native groups. I know from when I grew up that Nirvana was a burial ground but I was taught to respect 

it. Now 15 years later there is no education on the area and that is why there is no respect.  

From the meetings I’ve attended, which has been many, everyone seems to agree with no motorized 

vehicles, yes to swimming, education, signage, fire rings and having toilets and garbage receptacles 

outside of the park, the only thing stirring the pot is lies and drama. 

As members of the City Council, it is your job to make the decisions that will best fit the community and I 

hope you do so keeping in mind that there is no other place in Cordova where you can go not only have 

fun but be educated. We are a community that lives and breathes together and to separate ourselves is 

wrong. We live on this land together, we cry together, we celebrate together why try to take away and 

discredit where we can all come together.  

 

Please set aside the drama and make and educated, unbiased decision that will benefit your WHOLE 

community. 

 

Sincerely, 

Raven Madison 

18



1

Susan Bourgeois

From: Becki Shipman <beckishipman88@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, May 22, 2017 6:10 PM
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: Fwd: Nirvana Park/Eyak Spit

---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: "Becki Shipman" <beckishipman88@gmail.com> 
Date: May 18, 2017 3:00 PM 
Subject: Nirvana Park/Eyak Spit 
To: <acm@cityofcordova.net> 
Cc:  
 
To whom it may concern: 
 
As a long time resident of Cordova, and having two grown children that were raised here, I 
have had the pleasure of utilizing this prime recreation area many times. It has always been 
a gathering place for Cordova's residents in the summer. Many sunny days, flocks of children 
can be seen heading down Lake Avenue with their towels around their necks and floats in 
tow. Coming from a community that has always struggled with finding suitable recreational 
activities for our youth, it is always a hard hit when established activity sites are taken away. I 
believe that weather is the biggest factor in the erosion of the spit, not the recreational users. 
I am hoping alternative resolutions, like reinforcent of the spit would be a better solution to 
preserving the area than "restricting access". Either way, I hope a compromise can be 
reached between both groups, that allows use of the spit by the community while ensuring 
the site is respected for it's historical background. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Becki Shipman 
Cordova Resident 

19



May 23, 2017 

 

Dear City Council, 

 

I am writing to you as a concerned Eyak citizen regarding the situation at the Spit.  For the life of me, I 

cannot understand how so much drama and ugliness could arise from identifying grave sites and 

requesting respect for those who have passed before us.  I have witnessed accusations, racism and 

ugliness unbecoming to our beautiful community.   

I have grown up knowing that the spit was a grave yard but I was under the impression that all the 

graves were dug up in less understanding times and that I was recreating on a former grave site.  I 

strongly urge you to block the spit from vehicle traffic.   Driving atop graves does not happen at the 

other cemeteries and should not happen at this one.  I strongly urge you to mark the graves and to 

install educational signage.  This is an important area and we could all stand to have better 

understanding of the history of the area and the people.   

The spit is a wonderful place for children to swim and I encourage the continued use of the spit for 

recreational uses like swimming.   I want to express to you how strongly I feel against fire rings being 

installed at the spit.  The spit is a wonderful place for children to swim on warm days.   Children have no 

business starting fires and fire rings become collection spots for broken glass.  I know that some parents 

might argue that they cannot possibly swim on a hot day without starting a fire.  For those parents, I 

encourage the building of a fire pit on the concrete slab in Nirvana Park. 

Contrary to rumors I have heard, and despite my best research efforts, I can find NO evidence that 

recreating atop grave sites is an Eyak tradition.   Swimming has occurred here for many years and 

sometimes tradition, history and new ideas collide and compromises and understanding must be 

reached.   

I encourage the exploration of grave finding through ground penetrating technology.  I have heard a 

Council member ask at a public comment meeting for the spit, “who cares where the graves are?”   

Council members, I care.  I want to honor and respect those who have passed before me and I do not 

wish to traverse across their resting places.  You do the best with what you know.  When you know 

better, you do better.  I further urge you, Council Members, to support recommendations by the 

committee members who have worked tirelessly to meet throughout the past year, in sometimes 

hostile conditions. 

 

I encourage you to support the committee recommendations for the spit and Nirvana park and to bring 

closure on what has become an extremely divisive issue.  

 

Respectfully, 

Angela Butler 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



A memo from Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DATE:    May 30, 2017 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      Resolution 06-17-17 
 
 
Cordova Municipal Code 5.36.240 requires that City Council set the 2017 Mill Rate 
by June 15, 2017. On May 3, 2017, Council certified the 2017 tax roll putting 
Cordova’s total taxable value for 2017 at $205,136,290. There are three scenarios 
for mill rates presented for Council tonight. One mill is equal to about $205k in 
property tax revenue (exactly $205,136.29). 
 

1) A mill rate of 12.06 would achieve revenue of $2,473,944 – the closest to 
$2.474 million, going out only 2 decimal places, which was the revenue goal 
set when Council passed the 2017 budget in December of 2016. 

 
2) A mill rate of 12.44 would put Cordova at property tax revenues of $2,551,895 

for 2017.  
 

3) A mill rate of 12.68 would put Cordova at property tax revenues of $2,601,128 
for 2017.  

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to approve Resolution 06-17-17 with x 
inserted as the mill rate. 
 
REQUIRED ACTION:  Majority roll call vote. 
 

47



1 2002 13.5/12.5
2003 13.5/12.5

Total Tax Revenue 2004 14/13
Cordova City Limits Total Taxable 2017 $205,136,290 12.06 $2,473,944 Total Property Taxes 2005 14/13

2006 13.35/12.35
value of home taxes 2007 13.35/12.35

2016 $200,000 $2,210.00 ~ equal to budget 2008 13/12
2017 $200,000 $2,412.00 2009 14.5/13.5

annual increase $202.00 9.14% 2010 13.9/12.9
monthly increase $16.83 2011 9.7/8.7

2012 9.43/8.43
2 2013 9.43/8.43

2014 12.07/11.07
Total Tax Revenue 2015 11.53

Cordova City Limits Total Taxable 2017 $205,136,290 12.44 $2,551,895 Total Property Taxes 2016 11.05
2017 ??

value of home taxes
2016 $200,000 $2,210.00 $77,895
2017 $200,000 $2,488.00 more than budgeted

annual increase $278.00 12.58%
monthly increase $23.17

3

Total Tax Revenue
Cordova City Limits Total Taxable 2017 $205,136,290 12.68 $2,601,128 Total Property Taxes

value of home taxes
2016 $200,000 $2,210.00
2017 $200,000 $2,536.00 $127,128

annual increase $326.00 14.75% more than budgeted
monthly increase $27.17

Mill Rate Scenarios 2017

closest to budgeted revenue of $2.474 M

2017 Total Taxable Value is $205,136,290, Therefore,
Each Mill Gains $205,136.29 in Property Taxes

mill rate increase of 1.01 mills to 12.06 mills

Historical Cordova
Mill Rates

mill rate increase of 1.63 mills to 12.68 mills

average mill rate over 
past 15 years

12.42

to get property tax revenue of ~ $2.55 million
mill rate increase of 1.39 mills to ~ 12.44 mills

to get property tax revenue of ~ $2.6 million

48



 

 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 06-17-17 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

SETTING THE MILL RATE FOR THE 2017 TAX YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, Alaska Statute, Section 29.45.240 and Cordova Municipal Code 5.36.240 

require that the mill levy be established by resolution annually prior to June 15 of the tax year; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Cordova Municipal Code Section 1.18.010 A, this rate 

setting resolution requires a public hearing before passage. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, hereby sets the mill rate for 2017 real property at XX.xx mills for all properties 
in the City of Cordova. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7th DAY OF JUNE, 2017 
  
 
         
      
       ______________________________ 
       Clay R. Koplin, Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

49



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 1 of 8  

 
AGENDA ITEM # 24 

City Council Meeting Date:  6/7/2017 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
                      
 
FROM:   Planning Staff 
 
DATE:   5/31/17 
 
ITEM:    Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
   
NEXT STEP:  Review Proposal and Possibly Award Property 
                      
 
 _____ INFORMATION 
 __X__ MOTION 
 _____    RESOLUTION  
 _____    ORDINANCE   
                      
                                                                                                     
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:    
 
Requested Actions:  Review proposal 
Legal Description:  Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision 
Area:    Lot 8 = 8,334 SF; Lot 9 = 8,380 SF 
Zoning:   Low Density Residence District 
Attachments:   Letter of Interest 
    Plat 
    Location Map  
    Proposal Packet (The packet distributed to potential proposers) 
    Proposal from Bradford, Campbell and Weise 
 
The request for proposals for this property began April 1st, 2017 and ended May 1st, 2017 at 10 AM. The 
City received one proposal for the property. Attached is the full proposal packet and the proposal.  

50



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 2 of 8  

 
The proposed price from Bradford, Campbell and Weise was $3.30 per square foot for a total of $10,000 
 
Per the Request for Proposals for the property: “The City Council reserves the right to reject any 
proposal, part of any proposal, or all proposals. The City Council may accept and negotiate with any 
proposer deemed most advantageous to the City of Cordova.” 
  
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: 
 
Staff suggest the following motion: 
 
“I move to award the disposal to Bradford, Campbell and Weise for portions of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, 
Odiak Park Subdivision.” 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The city would receive purchase price of the property and future property tax revenue.  
  
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
2/2/17 – Letter of interest received from Eagle Contracting (Attachment A). 
 
2/14/17 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission recommended disposing of the lot 

by direct negotiation: 
 
 M/Bird S/Roemhildt to recommend to City Council to dispose of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park 

Subdivision as requested in the letter of interest from Eagle Contraction as outlined in Cordova 
Municipal Code 5.22.060B by negotiating an agreement with Eagle Contracting to lease or purchase 
the property. 

 
 Bird said she had wondered about the same questions raised by Bradford. Bird said it sounded like 

the lot lines would have to be addressed. Greenwood said that a title search would clear it up and costs 
would have to be negotiated. Roemhildt said that in the past they have not sold nearby land because of 
the greenbelt issue. He said that disturbing the ground may affect the foundations of the houses. 
Pegau said that the property was a steep cliff and he doesn’t see how it could be developed and meet 
setbacks without a lot of rockwork.  

 
 Frohnapfel said he wanted to refer it back to staff to resolve the property line issue. He said it was not 

up to the commission to determine whether or not someone could use the property; it was whether or 
not the property is for sale. Greenwood said that the city does not have the funds to resolve the issue 
and that typically the title search would be a part of the disposal process. Staff did not know the issue 
existed until they received a letter of interest. In a typical land sale these sorts of title issues are sorted 
out during closing. Stavig said that there is a substantial amount of land the city shows as available 
that the city doesn’t even have title to yet. Greenwood pointed out that this was similar to the Section 
Line easement they discovered on the Power Creek property; all of these issues get sorted out during 
the disposal process, so that the costs for sorting the issues out can be a part of the negotiations. 

 
 McGann said that you can’t do something on your property that adversely affects the neighbor’s 

property. He said that just because it is available does not obligate the commission to dispose of it. 

51



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 3 of 8  

Bird said that all of the properties along the hill were shown as available and that maybe they should 
look at making all of the lots not available.  

 
 M/Bird S/Roemhildt to amend the motion to recommend to City Council to dispose of 

portions of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision as outlined in Cordova Municipal 
Code 5.22.060 by requesting sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property.  

 
 Upon voice vote, amendment passed 5-0. 
 Yea: McGann, Pegau, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird 
 Absent: Baenen, Kocan 

 
 Upon voice vote, main motion passed 3-2. 
 Yea: McGann, Baenen, Roemhildt 
 Nay: Pegau, Frohnapfel 
 Absent: Baenen, Kocan 
 
3/1/17 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, council directed staff to put the property out for proposals: 
 

M/Hallquist S/Joyce to direct the City Manager to dispose of Lots 8 & 9 Block 1 Odiak Park Subdivision as 
outlined in Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by requesting sealed proposals to lease or purchase the 
property.  
Hallquist said he drove by the lots today, he read the letters Council has received, he read what planning and 
zoning recommended and he read the information that the City Clerk sent. He said we listed this as available 
for sale – thinks it wouldn’t be right to pull it back then after someone send a letter of interest on it. Hallquist 
said he read Tom McGann’s comments from the Planning and Zoning meeting which say that you cannot 
do something on your own property that would adversely affect your neighbor’s property so he is willing to 
take proposals on this lot and see what comes in. Joyce agreed and said we should at least see what ideas are 
out there, including adjacent landowners who are more than welcome to put proposals in. He said once the 
proposals are in, Council could opt against choosing any one of them. Allison said he also thinks it never 
hurts to get proposals on a lot, he said we are still at the beginning stages of this one. Bailer said he would 
support it but hopes staff can stay close to this one, really understand what a contractor intends to do here 
before approving a proposal.  
Vote on the motion: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Burton, Beedle), 1 conflict of interest (Wiese). Motion was 
approved. 

 
5/1/17 – Proposal received from Bradford, Campbell and Weise. 
 
5/16/17 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission recommended council approve the 

proposal from Bradford, Campbell and Weise: 
 

M/Baenen S/Bird to recommend City Council approve the proposal from Bradford, Campbell and 
Weise for portions of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision. 
 
McGann said that they had not received a proposal from David Sjostedt, who had submitted the 
original letter of interest. Baenen said that they have a criteria for proposals that only should be 
used when they receive more than one proposal. He did complete the criteria, but he could go 
either way as the land will probably sit there another 100 years. Greenwood explained that with 
the letter of interest there had been some concerns about developing the property. Bird said that if 
the property has so many issues, she wondered why they had it available. The proposal makes a 
lot of sense to her and she supports it. Pegau said he likes the idea of getting the area replatted and 

52



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 4 of 8  

getting the contested area sorted out. He hopes the replat will follow the existing property lines. 
Frohnapfel said he thought it was a great proposal that solved many different issues. He also 
wanted the area below delineated as a greenbelt and not available on the land disposal maps. 
McGann said he was in support and that it made perfect sense and that the greenbelt was in a 
perfect spot. Greenwood said that they would figure out the location of the easement and the terms 
during the replat process.  
 
Upon roll call vote, motion passed 6-0. 
Yea: McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Frohnapfel, Kocan, Bird 
Absent: Roemhildt 

 
Applicable Code: 
 

Section 5.22.060 – REVENUE AND FINANCE – DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – 
Methods of disposal for fair market value. 
D. A request for proposals to lease or purchase city real property shall specify the criteria upon 
which proposals will be evaluated and the minimum rent or purchase price. All proposals submitted 
in response to a request for proposals shall be reviewed by the planning commission, which shall 
make a recommendation to the city council to accept or decline any or all of the proposals. The city 
council shall review the proposals and the planning commission's recommendation and accept or 
decline any of the proposals. 

 
V. LEGAL ISSUES: 
  
Disposal documents may need legal review. Legal review may be required for the potential land conflict 
described in section VI. 
  
VI.   CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
  
After receiving the letter of interest, staff researched the property and discovered a possible conflict with the 
property owners located northwest of Lot 8 and 9. Attachment B is the plat creating these two lots. 
Attachment C shows the city’s parcel data with the two areas of conflict highlighted. During disposal process, 
this issue will be investigated further and resolved.  
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
The council can choose to decline the proposal. 
 
            
 
 

 
 

53



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 5 of 8  

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 

54



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 6 of 8  

ATTACHMENT B 
 

 

55



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 7 of 8  56



Proposal for Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision  
Page 8 of 8  

ATTACHMENT C 

 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85

planner2
Snapshot



 
 

  
  
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 25 
City Council Meeting Date: June 7, 2017 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
               ___  
 
FROM:  Cathy Sherman, Information Services Director  
 
DATE:    31/May/2017  
 
ITEM:   Recommendation from Nirvana Park Core Committee    
               ___  
 
 _____ ORDINANCE 
 _____ MOTION 
 __X__   INFORMATION    
                ___  
                                                                                                    
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:    
  

Nirvana Park Cemetery and Eyak Burial Grounds Restoration and Preservation: A 
Cordova Community Project Funded by the Rasmuson Foundation 

   
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: 

 
Through a series of more than a dozen public meetings since receiving the 
grant; and after thorough public comment, letters, petitions and in-depth 
discussion, the Core Committee is recommending the following project scope 
for the reclamation, restoration and preservation of Cordova’s first burial 
grounds and historic cemetery and park.  
 Recognize the Spit as “Eyak Burial Grounds.” 
 Recognize Nirvana Park as “Nirvana Park Cemetery.” 
 Link the Eyak Burial Grounds, Nirvana Park Cemetery and Lakeview 

(Pioneer) Cemeteries together through landscaping and signage.  
 Work with Eyak Corporation and the Native Village of Eyak to continue 

the annual spring cleanup of the above mentioned areas.  

86



 Recognize and post signage to make the Eyak Burial Grounds and 
Nirvana Park Cemetery as non-motorized areas (via land, water, ice, 
snow) as are the Pioneer and Highway Cemetery and the Evergreen 
(South Second Street) Cemetery. 

 Recognize and mark the gravesites identified by the initial GP study on 
the Eyak Burial Grounds.  

 Continue further GPR study on Eyak Burial Grounds and Nirvana Park 
Cemetery and once completed mark all the gravesites.  

 Recognize the Eyak Burial Grounds and Nirvana Park Cemetery as an 
area of no open fires; fires only in fire ring at old gazebo space with 
benches built and placed around fire ring. 

 Allow swimming in Eyak Burial Grounds area. 
 Establish a porta potty and develop a long-term solution for the future.  
 Establish trash receptacle near Porta-Potty to be maintained by Parks & 

Rec Department. All areas should be ‘pack it in- pack it out.’ 
 
Once Final GPR is completed: 
 Create interpretive signage for the Eyak Burial Grounds and Nirvana 

Park Cemetery; 
 Create unique gates and bridges to add to the beauty of the Park.  
 Replace the missing fence at the Pioneer Cemetery. Clean and fix the 

flagpole in the Pioneer Cemetery.  
 Determine steps to stabilize and preserve Eyak Burial Grounds.  
 Exhumation or movement of any gravesites in the Eyak Burial Grounds 

or Nirvana Park Cemetery is strictly prohibited. 
 Post and enforce no alcohol and substance use. 

 
III. FISCAL IMPACTS:  

 
Regular Parks and Rec Maintenance based on daily rounds only fiscal impact to 
City of Cordova at this time.  

  
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
In July of 2016, the Rasmuson Foundation presented a check for $25,000 to the 
Cordova Historical Society for the restoration and preservation of Nirvana Park 
as a community investment for Cordova.  Public meetings were held to 
discuss how to use this funding to the best ability of the community. A core 
committee was formed consisting of: 
 
 Cordova Historical Society 
 Native Village of Eyak 

87



 Eyak Burial Caucus 
 City of Cordova Parks and Recreation Department 
 City of Cordova Public Works Department 
 City of Cordova Port and Harbor 

 
V. LEGAL ISSUES: 

 
None known at this time, but research work continues with State of Alaska 
regarding cultural impacts in the water.  

   
VI.   CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 

 
All parties are in agreement at this time. No known environmental issues at this 
time, but erosion control remains a long-term item for further discussion.  

 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 

The Core Committee sees this as an on-going opportunity to improve the use 
and respect of the area. The Core Committee worked hard to address and 
evaluate all uses and needs of the community in this well-loved place. There 
will continue to be a series of public meetings throughout the summer 
regarding design of interpretive signage, markers for gravesites and 
development of pathways.   

 
Throughout the summer season of 2017, Parks and Rec staff and other 
community volunteers will monitor the area collecting data and recording 
usage and abuse with a follow up end of the season meeting to review these 
recommendations.  

 
The dialogue has been open, honest, forthright and astonishing throughout this 
process. And it is a process, which will continue. Hopefully the end result will 
reflect the energy, time and commitment of both the committee, their 
respective councils, commissions and boards. 

 
The Core Committee looks forward to providing further updates as the project 
progresses with complete transparency of the use of these funds generously 
gifted to our community.  

 
 

88



A.

1) Revisit Council representation on boards and Commissions

2) Council direction to staff in pursuing Crater Lake Water & Power project from City (water) side

future Council agenda item

3) Discussion/action regarding water charges at the Harbor

4) Odiak Camper Park and/or other locations for long term rv/trailer rentals in Cordova

5) Marijuana ordinance

6) Cordova Center bird mitigation ‐ for 2018

B.

1) Will the second regular June meeting be held or canceled?

June 21, 2017 Regular Meeting: yes or no, decision?

2) Capital Priorities List and Resolution to come before Council quarterly:

after work session of 6/7/17 ‐ the decided upon new list will be brought to the next regular meeting

9/20/2017 12/6/2017 3/7/2018 6/6/2018

3) Ordinance 1146 put marijuana moratorium until January 1, 2017

4) Staff quarterly reports will be in the following packets:

7/19/2017 10/18/2017 1/17/2018 4/18/2018

C.

Clear direction should be given to staff on the what and when of this proposed agenda item.

item:
suggested

agenda date:

1) …

2) …

3) …

Mayor Koplin or the City Manager can either agree to such an item and that will automatically place it

on an agenda, or a second Council member can concur with the sponsoring Council member.

Mayor/Council member/staff member suggestions for future agenda items:

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska

Pending Agenda ‐ June 7, 2017 Regular Council Meeting

Upcoming Meetings, agenda items and/or events:

Future agenda items ‐ when will these be heard before Council?

89



D.

1) Fisheries Advisory Committee: 1‐Torie Baker, chair (Marine Adv Prgm) 2‐Jeremy Botz (ADF&G)

 authorizing resolu on 04‐03‐45 4‐Jim Holley (AML)

approved Apr 16, 2003  5‐Chelsea Haisman 6‐Dave Reggiani (PWSAC)

2) Cordova Trails Committee: 1‐Elizabeth Senear 2‐Toni Godes

 authorizing resolu on 11‐09‐65  3‐Dave Zastrow

approved Dec 2, 2009 4‐vacant 5‐vacant

3) Fisheries Development Committee: 1‐Warren Chappell 2‐Andy Craig 3‐Bobby Linville

authorizing resolution 

12‐16‐43
4‐Gus Linville 5‐Tommy Sheridan 6‐Bob Smith

approved Dec 23, 2016

E.

1) Prince William Sound Regional Citizens Advisory Council

Robert Beedle re‐appointed March 2016 2 year term

re‐appointed March 2014

appointed April 2013

2) Prince William Sound Aquaculture Corporation Board of Directors

Tom Bailer term until Oct 2018 3 year term

appointed February 2017

3) Southeast Conference AMHS Reform Project Steering Committee

Mike Anderson appointed April 2016 through December 2017

Sylvia Lange alternate

City of Cordova appointed representatives to various Boards et al:

3‐Ken Roemhildt (Seafd Sales)

Membership of existing advisory committees of Council formed by resolution:

Pending Agenda ‐ June 7, 2017 Regular Council Meeting

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska

90



CALENDAR MONTH JUNE
CALENDAR YEAR 2017
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
28 29 30 31 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 1

2 3 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Community Rm A
CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference 
Room

2017
JUNE

6:00 Council work session
6:45 Council pub hrg

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:30 P&Z CCAB 7:00 Sch Bd HSL
7:00 Harbor Cms CCB

6:00 P&R CCM

Flag Day

6:00 Council work session
6:45 Council pub hrg 

(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:00 CCMCAB HCR

Copper River Nouveau

91



CALENDAR MONTH JULY
CALENDAR YEAR 2017
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
25 26 27 28 29 30 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Community Rm A
CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference 
Room

2017
JULY

6:30 P&Z CCAB 7:00 Sch Bd HSL
7:00 Harbor Cms CCB

6:00 P&R CCM

July 4-City Hall
Offices Closed

Copper River Wild Salmon Festival 
www.copperriverwild.org

Salmon Runs

6:00 Council work session
6:45 Council pub hrg 

(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:00 Council work session
6:45 Council pub hrg 

(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:00 CCMCAB HCR

92

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiuppKF1L3TAhVS6WMKHV-wALAQjRwIBw&url=https://runcharlotte.wordpress.com/2014/07/04/independence-day/&psig=AFQjCNFuRmOcQruEsXSJH8hr5XoEoZ9yKg&ust=1493142649483024
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiuppKF1L3TAhVS6WMKHV-wALAQjRwIBw&url=https://runcharlotte.wordpress.com/2014/07/04/independence-day/&psig=AFQjCNFuRmOcQruEsXSJH8hr5XoEoZ9yKg&ust=1493142649483024
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjcye3b573TAhUP6mMKHUEYAbgQjRwIBw&url=https://infograph.venngage.com/p/53183/the-be-healthy-project&psig=AFQjCNHK6aQt6dogBcuG_tc-n6JoS0HCmA&ust=1493147942725666
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjcye3b573TAhUP6mMKHUEYAbgQjRwIBw&url=https://infograph.venngage.com/p/53183/the-be-healthy-project&psig=AFQjCNHK6aQt6dogBcuG_tc-n6JoS0HCmA&ust=1493147942725666


CALENDAR MONTH AUGUST
CALENDAR YEAR 2017
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
30 31 1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31 1 2

3 4 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Community Rm A
CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference 
Room

2017
AUGUST

6:30 P&Z CCAB
7:00 Sch Bd HSL

7:00 Harbor Cms CCB

6:00 P&R CCM

6:00 Council work session
6:45 Council pub hrg 

(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:00 Council work session
6:45 Council pub hrg 

(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:00 CCMCAB HCR

Alaska State Fair Aug 24 - Sep 4Alaska State Fair Aug 24 - Sep 4

Alaska State Fair Aug 24 - Sep 4

93



seat/length of term email Date Elected Term Expires
Mayor: Clay Koplin March 1, 2016 March-19
3 years Mayor@cityofcordova.net

Council members:
Seat A: James Burton March 1, 2016 March-19
3 years CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net March 5, 2013
Seat B: Kenneth Jones March 7, 2017 March-20
3 years CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net

Seat C: Jeff Guard March 7, 2017 March-20
3 years CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net

Seat D: Robert Beedle March 3, 2015 March-18
3 years CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net

Seat E: Josh Hallquist, Vice Mayor March 3, 2015 March-18
3 years CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net

Seat F: David Allison March 1, 2016 March-19
3 years CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net

Seat G: James Wiese March 1, 2016 March-19
3 years CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net

length of term Date Elected Term Expires
3 years Barb Jewell, President March 1, 2016 March-19

bjewell@cordovasd.org March 5, 2013
3 years Bret Bradford  bbradford@cordovasd.org March 3, 2015 March-18
3 years Tammy Altermott March 1, 2016 March-19

taltermott@cordovasd.org March 5, 2013
3 years Peter Hoepfner March 3, 2015 March-18

phoepfner@cordovasd.org March 6, 2012
March 3, 2009
March 7, 2006

3 years Sheryl Glasen March 7, 2017 March-20
sglasen@cordovasd.org March 4, 2014
Vacant (appointed, non-voting)

City Council Rep

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials

Cordova School District School Board - Elected

Mayor and City Council - Elected

& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

seat up Nov 17

seat up for re-election in 2018

board/commission chair

94



length of term Date Elected Term Expires
3 years Kristin Carpenter March 7, 2017 March-20
3 years Sally Bennett March 7, 2017 March-19
3 years April Horton March 7, 2017 March-19
3 years Dorne Hawxhurst March 7, 2017 March-18
3 years John Harvill March 7, 2017 March-18

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years November-16 November-19

November-13
November-10
November-06

3 years Wendy Ranney November-15 November-18
April-13

3years Erica Clark November-16 November-19
3 years Krysta Williams December-14 November-17

November-11
3 years Kay Groff December-14 November-17

December-11
January-09

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Nancy Bird November-16 November-19
3 years Allen Roemhildt November-16 November-19

January-14
3 years Scott Pegau, vice chair December-14 November-17

December-11
3 years John Baenen November-15 November-18

December-12
3 years Tom McGann, chair December-14 November-17

December-11
April-11

3 years Heath Kocan November-15 November-18
3 years Mark Frohnapfel February-15 November-17

LIBRARY BOARD - APPOINTED

CCMC Authority - Board of Directors - Elected

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION - APPOINTED

Mary Anne Bishop, Chair

seat up Nov 17

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA – ELECTED OFFICIALS
& APPOINTED MEMBERS OF CITY BOARDS and COMMISSIONS

seat up for re-election in 2018 board/commission chair

95



length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Robert Beedle, Chair January-14 November-17
3 years Andy Craig November-16 November-19
3 years Max Wiese January-14 November-17

March-11
3 years Ken Jones November-16 November-19

February-13
3 years Jacob Betts November-15 November-18

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Wendy Ranney, Chair November-15 November-18

August-14
3 years Kara Johnson February-15 November-17

December-12
3 years Miriam Dunbar November-15 November-18

August-14
3 years Stephen Phillips November-15 November-18
3 years Marvin VanDenBroek November-16 November-19

February-14
3 years Karen Hallquist November-16 November-19

November-13
3 years Dave Zastrow February-15 November-17

September-14

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Cathy Sherman August-16 November-19
3 years Heather Hall August-16 November-19
3 years Brooke Johnson August-16 November-19
3 years John Wachtel August-16 November-18
3 years Sylvia Lange August-16 November-18
3 years Tom McGann August-16 November-18
3 years Jim Casement, Chair August-16 November-17

seat up for re-election in 2018 seat up Nov 17

board/commission chair

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION - APPOINTED

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA – ELECTED OFFICIALS
& APPOINTED MEMBERS OF CITY BOARDS and COMMISSIONS

HARBOR COMMISSION - APPOINTED

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION - APPOINTED

96


	res 06-17-18-all
	res 06-17-19-all
	06-07-17 Proclamation for Bill Gilbert
	05-17-17 Public Hearing Minutes
	05-17-17 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Mayors Report 6-7-17
	05-19-17 ltr frm Gov dep chief of staff re infrastructure projects
	05-22-17 s.renner email re Nirvana cemetery park-spit
	05-22-17 r.madison email re Nirvana park
	05-22-17 b.shipman email re Nirvana park-eyak spit
	05-23-17 a.butler Nirvana Park letter
	05-31-17 b.chapek letter re kopchak variance
	05-31-17 d.riedel petition re Nirvana park
	06-02-17 Mayor letter to Governor and Commissioner Cotten
	05-31-17 Alaska Magazine Article.April 2017
	Resolution 06-17-17-all
	ADPF3E4.tmp
	SCENARIOS

	ADPCDF2.tmp
	A memo from Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk


	06-07-17 land disposal-all
	rpt on nirvana-spit 06-07-17
	06-07-17 PA
	junjulaug.pdf
	07-2017.pdf
	APR 17






